
     CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE     
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – October 24, 2022 Page 1 of 2 

Date: October 24, 2022 

Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 

Time: 5:00 p.m. 

Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment 
use the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record 
may be submitted to aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

1. Call to Order

A. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

A. Pg. 1: Agenda

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda)

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)

A. Excused Absences:
B. Pg. 3: Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of October 10, 2022
C. Pg. 6: Approval of:

Pg. 19: For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling 
$1,025,728.05 are included in the Warrants noted above: 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13494 to 13552 - $570,780.01 (Included in A/P Warrant
57994)

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 13553 to 13594 - $454,948.04 (Included in A/P Warrant
58033)

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action)
A. Pg. 40: Board Policy 2.17 Anti-Harassment Procedures – Chief Morrow

7. 2023 Budget Presentation

8. Public Hearing on 2023 Annual Budget
A. Chair Opens Public Hearing

B. Public Comment

C. Chair Closes Public Hearing

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57989 to 58030 totaling: $ 673,175.07 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58031 to 58058 totaling: $ 519,637.81 

GRAND TOTAL $ 1,192,812.88 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org


 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – October 24, 2022   Page 2 of 2 

 
 

9. Public Hearing on 2023 Fire Benefit Charge  
A. Chair Opens Public Hearing 

B. Public Comment 

C. Chair Closes Public Hearing 
 

10. New Business (First Reading) 
A. Pg. 44: 2023 Budget – FD Robacker  

i. Resolution No. 22-08 – Regular Levy  
ii. Resolution No. 22-09 – EMS Levy 
iii. Resolution No. 22-10 – Benefit Charge  
iv. Resolution No. 22-11 – Budget Adoption & Levy Certification 

 
B. Pg. 52: Board Policy 3.04 District Change Funds – Chief Morrow  

 

11. Considerations and Requests 
 

12. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg. 59: Finance – FD Robacker  
 

B. Pg. 70: Prevention & Education – AC Berdan 
 

C. Pg. 72: Health & Safety – AC McKenzie 
 

D. Pg. 73: Fire Chief – Chief Morrow 
 

13. Correspondence 
 

A. Pg. 74: Employee Recognition 
 

14. Executive Session 
RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public 
employment or to review the performance of a public employee. However, subject 
to RCW 42.30.140(4), discussion by a governing body of salaries, wages, and other 
conditions of employment to be generally applied within the agency shall occur in a 
meeting open to the public, and when a governing body elects to take final action 
hiring, setting the salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or 
discharging or disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting 
open to the public. 
 

15. Commissioner Comments 
 
16. Adjournment 
 

2

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.30.140


DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   October 10, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 10, 2022 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire 
& Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 5:00 p.m.  A 
remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Ex-Officio Door, Chief Morrow, 
Deputy Chief Stueve, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, Assistant Chiefs Kent and Bouchard, and 
Executive Assistant Paramapoonya, recorder. L726 President James joined the meeting at 
6:19 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Holm led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of September 26, 2022    
C. Approval of: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $5,398,249.69. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57486 to 57486 totaling: $ (531.34) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57403 to 57403 totaling: $ (1,473.00) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57572 to 57572 totaling: $ (2,086.63) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57768 to 57768 totaling: $ (21,893.50) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57629 to 57629 totaling: $ (753.60) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57943 to 57943 totaling: $ 6,049.70 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107655 to 107670 totaling: $ 15,554.94 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57944 to 57944 totaling: $ 4,529.80 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57945 to 57974 totaling: $ 335,363.72 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57975 to 57988 totaling: $ 5,042,396.82 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107671 to 107674 totaling: $ 21,092.78 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,398,249.69 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   October 10, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
 

A. Board Policy 2.05 Reporting Improper Governmental Actions 
 

Chief Morrow reviewed Board Policy 2.05 Reporting Improper Governmental Actions. Staff 
received input and made edits to the format of the policy. Commissioner Willis moved and 
Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the second reading of Board Policy 2.05 
Reporting Improper Governmental Actions as presented by Staff. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
 

A. Board Policy 2.17 Anti-Harassment Procedures 
 
Chief Morrow discussed Board Policy 2.17 Anti-Harassment Procedures. All feedback and/or 
comments from the Board will be included in revisions.  
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  
 
No Considerations or Requests 
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION, AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 

A. Human Resources/HRD Washo: The upcoming Promotional Ceremony will be next 
week.  
 

B. Field Operations/AC Kent: AC Kent discussed his Division Report.  
 

C. EMS/AC Bouchard: Thank you to the Board for approving the second CARES RN. 
Modems on the Life Packs will go live this week, which will allow for in-depth feedback 
on cardiac arrests.  

 

D. DC Operations/DC Stueve: Tara Erickson, our new Operations Analyst is here.   
 

E. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow: The Station 72 dirt issue continues. Labor 
negotiations are going well. I want to commend our Staff on all the work everyone is 
doing.  

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 

A. Employee Recognition: Chair Holm is always proud to see the correspondence in the 
packet. This is great work by our people.  

 
2023 BUDGET PRESENTATION 
Chief Morrow and FD Robacker reviewed the upcoming schedule for the budget meetings, 
2023 Management Strategies, and proposed budgets for the Administration, Finance, Human 
Resources, Health & Safety, Prevention & Education, and IT Consortium Divisions.  
 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   October 10, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Chair Holm: I really enjoyed this budget presentation. Also, I love the fact there is so much 
new technology in EMS and we are moving in that direction.  
 
Vice Chair Stringfellow: I had the privilege to go see the documentary from Tacoma Fire. It 
was outstanding.  
 
Commissioner Willis: We are putting a lot of money into Health & Safety. I want to bring up 
the issue of Delayed Stress Syndrome, which is a problem. PTSD in Firefighters has jumped 
to the forefront. There are programs that we could look into for our personnel.  
 
Commissioner Coleman: The budget presentation was a lot easier to understand than in the 
past. Good job. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell: Chief Morrow and FD Robacker, you have done outstanding work 
putting this budget material together.  
 
Ex-Officio Door: Ex-Officio Door discussed the Shaw Road closure. I will be attending a 
conference in Wenatchee next week.  
 
President James: Good to see everyone.  
 
ADJOURNMENTS 
There being no further business, Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman 
seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:23 p.m. 
 

 
 

            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 

      
ARIEL PARAMAPOONYA 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: October 24, 2022 

Item Title:  Board Policy 2.17- Anti-Harassment Procedures 

Attachments:  Board Policy 2.17 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
MOTION: 
 
“I move to approve the second reading of Board Policy 2.17- Anti-Harassment Procedures as 
presented by Staff.” 
 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
 
Board Policy 2.17- Anti-Harassment Procedures has been presented for first reading. Since the 
first reading no additional comments have been received and no edits have been made. 
 
The Policy is presented for its second reading and approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

40



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 2.17 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: October 6, 2004 

REVIEWED: 8/31/2022 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

SUBJECT:  ANTI‐HARASSMENT PROCEDURES 

 

PURPOSE:  To  establish  procedures  to  prevent  harassment  by  and  toward  Central  Pierce  Fire & 

Rescue Employees.  

 

POLICY:  Central Pierce Fire & Rescue is committed to maintaining a work environment that is 

free from discrimination and harassment. In keeping with this commitment, the District 

will not tolerate harassment of District employees by anyone, including any District 

official, employee, volunteer, vendor, client, or customer of the District.  

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

  The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

I. DEFINITIONS: 

 

A. Harassment: Consists of unwelcomed conduct, whether verbal, physical, or visual, 

including slurs, comments, gestures, jokes, innuendos, touching, pictures, cartoons, 

pranks, and unwelcomed compliments, that: (1) is based upon gender, color, race, 

ancestry, religion, national origin, age, physical or mental disability, medical 

condition, veteran status, citizenship status, sexual orientation or gender 

identification, or another protected group status; and (2) creates an intimidating, 

hostile, or offensive working environment, or unreasonably interferes with an 

individual’s work performance or employment opportunities. 

  

B. Sexual Harassment: A type of harassment that occurs when the types of conduct 

described above are sexual in nature or directed at a person because of his or her 

gender. Sexual harassment also occurs when employment opportunities or benefits 

are conditioned on an employee granting sexual favors to, or having a romantic 

relationship with, a supervisor or manager 

 

Other Inappropriate Conduct: Not every incident of inappropriate conduct 

constitutes harassment in violation of these procedures. Isolated incidents of 

offensive conduct are not necessarily unlawful harassment. For example, random 

words that offend a particular employee may not be sufficient to constitute 

41



harassment. Nonetheless, if an employee is offended by such behavior, it is 

important that they follow these procedures so the offensive behavior can be 

identified, evaluated, and corrected. 

 

C. Organizational Procedures: When a supervisor or Deputy Chief is notified of alleged 

harassment, they should promptly advise the Human Resources Department. The 

Human Resources Department, jointly with the Deputy Chief, will decide the 

appropriate level of investigation for the complaint. The investigation may include 

interviews with the directly‐involved parties, and where necessary, employees who 

may have observed the alleged harassment or who may also be recipients of 

harassment, and who may be able to share information about their experiences 

with the accused party. 

 

D. Disciplinary Action: Following an investigation, the complainant and the accused will 

be notified whether harassment was found to have occurred. An employee who is 

found to have harassed another employee will be disciplined. Disciplinary action 

may include verbal and/or written reprimands, a letter of reprimand to the 

employee’s personnel file, suspension, or termination. 

 

E. Non‐retaliation: No employee will be retaliated against in any way for complaining 

of harassment or providing information in connection with the investigation of a 

harassment complaint. 

 

F. Malicious Complaints: Complaints of harassment that are found, following an 

investigation to be contrived or willfully intended to cause harm to the accused 

person are a violation of these procedures, and the complainant is subject to 

disciplinary action.  

 

II. PROCEDURE: 

 

A. All District employees are responsible for helping to assure that harassment is 

prevented at all times. Supervisors and managers are expected to model 

appropriate behavior as well as to intervene if they witness potentially harassing 

behavior. Supervisors or managers receiving a complaint or observing inappropriate 

behavior should immediately report it to their Supervisor, a Deputy Chief, or the 

Human Resources Department. 

 

B. If you feel that you have experienced or witnessed harassment, you should take the 

following action: 

 

1. Identify the offensive behavior to the harasser, if appropriate, and 

request that it stop. 

42



2. If you are uncomfortable doing this, or the conduct does not stop, 

you must discuss your concern with a non‐involved supervisor, a 

Deputy Chief, or the Human Resources Department.  

3. Participate in the investigation about the offensive behavior. 

Although the District cannot assure total confidentiality for 

employees who report incidents of inappropriate conduct, every 

effort will be made to protect the rights and feelings of all parties 

concerned.  

4. If for any reason you are uncomfortable with Steps 1 or 2 above, 

you should contact the District’s Employee Assistance Program. The 

contact information is located on the Human Resources tab of the 

Infoportal or by contacting your insurance provider. 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

 

 

 

 

43



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: October 24, 2022 

Item Title: 2023 Budget and Property Tax Resolutions 

Attachments: Resolutions: 22-08, 22-09, 22-10, & 22-11 

Submitted by: FD Robacker  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

  Click here to enter text. 

SUMMARY:     

 

1. First Reading, no motion at this point: 

A. 22-08 Regular Levy 101% 

B. 22-09 EMS Levy 50¢  

C. 22-10 FBC  

D. 22-11 2023 Budget Adoption & Levy Certification 

 

2. Board Motions (No Motions tonight): 
 

A. Resolution 22-08 establishing the regular levy at a 1% increase over last year’s 

levy.  2023 collection will be set at $29,860,088.85. 
 

B. Resolution 22-09 re-establishing the EMS levy at the statutory maximum of 50 

cents per thousand. 2023 collection will be set at $20,976,272.50. 
 

C. Resolution 22-10 setting the FBC at $30,376,500 gross collections for 2023. 
 

D. Resolution 22-11 Adopting the 2023 District Budget at $123,789,275, 

appropriating budgets at the fund level and establishing a levy certification for Pierce 

County. 

 

44



Resolution No. 22-08 – 2023 Regular Levy  Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REQUESTING 2023 
(COLLECTION YEAR) HIGHEST LAWFUL LEVY FOR THE REGULAR PROPERTY 

TAX LEVY 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has 
properly given notice of the public hearing held October 24th, 2022 to consider the 
District's budget for the 2023 calendar year, pursuant to RCW 84.55.120; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, after 
hearing and duly considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, determined 
that Central Pierce Fire & Rescue requires an increase in property tax revenue from the 
previous year, in addition to that resulting from the addition of new construction and 
improvements to property and any increase in the value of state-assessed property, in 
order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the District and in its best 
interest; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the District’s actual regular levy amount from the previous year was 
$28,852,746.89; and, 
 

WHEREAS, such amount represents the actual amount levied, including refunds; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District's aggregate assessed valuation has been preliminarily 
certified at $41,952,544,990; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to RCW 84.52.125 it is the intent of the fire district 
commissioners to protect the district's tax levy from prorationing under RCW 
84.52.010(2), by imposing up to a total of twenty-five cents ($0.25) per thousand dollars 
of assessed valuation of the tax levies authorized under RCW 52.16.140 and RCW 
52.16.160, or either of them, outside of the five dollars and ninety cents per thousand 
dollars of valuation limitation established under RCW 84.52.043(2), if those taxes would 
otherwise be prorated under RCW 84.52.010(2)(e); and, 
  
 Further, pursuant to RCW 84.55.092, it is the intent of the fire district 
commissioners to protect the fire district's future levy capacity.  Therefore, in any year in 
which the district reduces the regular tax levy below the amount of levy to which the district 
is entitled by law, consistent with existing voter authorizations and the limitations of the 
state constitution and statutes, it is the district's intent to fully preserve future levy capacity 
as the aforesaid statute allows.  The county assessor is therefore requested to set the 
regular property tax levy at the amount which would be allowed under RCW 84.55, as if 
the regular property tax for the district for taxes due in prior years (beginning with 1986) 
had been set for the full or maximum amount authorized under the law; and 
 

45



Resolution No. 22-08 – 2023 Regular Levy  Page 2 of 2 

  WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue attests 
that the District population is approximately 230,339;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that an increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby 
authorized for the levy to be collected in the 2023 tax year.  The dollar amount of the 
increase over the actual levy amount from the previous year shall be $264,282.06 which 
is a percentage increase of 0.91597% from the previous year.  This increase is exclusive 
of additional revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly 
constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state assessed property, any 
annexations that have occurred and refunds made.   
 
 ADOPTED, at the Public Meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, this _____ 
day of November, 2022, by a majority of the members.   
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 
 

46



Resolution No. 22-09 – 2023 EMS Levy  Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REQUESTING $0.50 

LEVY FOR 2023 (COLLECTION YEAR) FOR THE EMS PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has 
properly given notice of the public hearing held October 24th, 2022 to consider Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue's budget for the 2023 calendar year, pursuant to RCW 84.55.120; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, after 
hearing and duly considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, determined 
that Central Pierce Fire & Rescue requires an increase in property tax revenue from the 
previous year, in addition to that resulting from the addition of new construction and 
improvements to property and any increase in the value of state-assessed property, in 
order to discharge the expected expenses and obligations of the District and in its best 
interest; and, 
  
  WHEREAS, the District’s actual EMS levy amount from the previous year was 
$11,377,564.28; and, 
 

WHEREAS, such amount represents the actual amount levied, including refunds; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue attests 

that the District population is approximately 230,339;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that an increase in the EMS property tax levy is hereby 
authorized for the levy to be collected in the 2023 tax year.  The EMS levy shall be levied 
at the rate of $0.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation as authorized by the voters’ approval 
on August 2nd 2022.    
  

47



Resolution No. 22-09 – 2023 EMS Levy  Page 2 of 2 

 
ADOPTED, at the Public Meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, this _____ day of 
November 2022, by a majority of the members.   
 
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 
 

48



RESOLUTION NO. 22-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, IMPOSING A BENEFIT 
CHARGE ON IMPROVEMENTS TO REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE DISTRICT FOR 

CALENDAR YEAR 2023 
 

 WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Chapter 52.18 RCW to establish, impose, 
and collect a benefit charge on improvements to real property located within the District,  
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the voters of the District have authorized the District to impose a fire 
benefit charge; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 52.18.060(2) a public hearing was held on October 
24th, 2022 to review and establish the benefit charge to be imposed for calendar year 
2023; and, 
 
  WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners, having heard and considered the 
testimony at the public hearing, such testimony being supportive of the continuation of 
the Fire Benefit Charge, deem it in the best interests of the District to establish the Fire 
Benefit Charge for 2023; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that:  The benefit charge to be collected in 2023 is hereby 
established in the total amount of $30,376,500. 
 
 ADOPTED, at the Public Meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, this ____ 
day of November, 2022, by a majority of the members.   
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner 
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner   Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 

49



   

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-11 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & 

RESCUE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the County Assessor has notified the Commissioners of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
that the assessed valuation of real properties lying within the boundaries of said District for 
the calendar year 2023 is $41,915,447,904. 

2. That the fund summary below hereby is adopted as the budget of Central Pierce Fire & 
Rescue for the fiscal year 2023.  Estimated resources for each separate fund for the year 
2023 are set forth in summary form below, and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at the 
fund level during the year 2023: 

 
Fund Amount 
General Fund (001) $   62,277,907 
EMS Special Revenue Fund (101)       28,846,273 
Equipment Replacement (001-015) 
Facilities Fund (001-050) 
GEMT SRF (102) 
GO Debt Fund (201)     
Capital Projects Fund (301)    
HRA/Flex (630)                                                     

        4,631,213 
        1,322,100    
      13,445,236 
        2,433,213 
      10,783,333 
             50,000 

   Total               $ 123,789,275 
 
3. That the Honorable County Council of Pierce County, Washington, be and is hereby requested 

to make a levy for 2023 for said Central Pierce Fire & Rescue of $83,646,075. 
4. That the County Treasurer of Pierce County, Washington, be and is hereby authorized and 

directed to deposit and sequester the monies received from the collection of the tax levy 
specified in Section 3 above in the amounts and funds specified below: 

A. $ 60,236,589 into the Current Expense Fund of said District 
B.        -0-           into the Reserve Fund of said District 
C.        -0-          into Registered Warrant Fund 
D.      2,433,213   into the GO Bond Fund 
E. _ 20,976,273  into the EMS Fund of said District 

5. That one copy of this resolution be delivered to the County Council and Auditor of Pierce 
County, Washington. 

Adopted at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, this 14th 
day of November, 2022. 
 

 

             

Matt Holm, Chairman     Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  

 

 

             

Rich Coleman, Commissioner     Bob Willis, Commissioner 

 

 

       ATTEST:                       

Dale Mitchell, Commissioner    Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 

50



   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
2023 LEVY CERTIFICATION 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF PIERCE 
 

In accordance with RCW 84.52.020, I, Tanya Robacker, District Secretary for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue, do hereby certify to the Pierce County legislative authority that the Board of Fire 
Commissioners of said district requests that the following levy amounts be collected in 2023 as 
provided in the District’s budget, which was adopted following a public hearing held on the 24th 
day of October, 2022: 

A. CURRENT EXPENSE FUNDS: 
1. REGULAR LEVY 

a) Regular Levy    $   29,814,145.46 

b) Plus Refunds- Regular Levy  $          45,943.39 

c) Total Levy    $   29,860,088.85 
 

2. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES   

a) EMS Levy    $    20,958,063.34 

b) Plus Refunds-EMS   $           18,209.16 

c) Total Levy    $    20,976,272.50 
 

B. RESERVE FUND     $       -0- 

C. REGISTERED WARRANT FUND   $       -0- 

D. G.O. BOND FUND Excess Levy    

a) Bond Levy    $      2,427,201.31 

b) Plus Refunds-EMS   $             6,011.69 

c) Total Levy    $      2,433,213.00 
 

E. FIRE BENEFIT CHARGE    $   30,376,500.00 

F. TOTAL TAXES REQUIRED    $   83,646,074.35 
 

 

Given under my hand and the official seal of said District on this 14th day of November, 2022. 
 
 

 

      _______________________________ 

      District Secretary 

51



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: October 24, 2022 

Item Title:  Board Policy 3.04 District Change Funds 

Attachments:  Board Policy 3.04 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Board Policy 3.04 - District Change Funds has been reviewed by Staff. The policy has been 
moved to the new format and updated with minor content changes. 
 
The Policy is presented for first reading and comment. 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

52



 
 

 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 1 of 2 
Policy 304 District Change Funds  Approved by  ______________ 10/20/2022  
                   Fire Chief 

 

 

DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS POLICY 
 
NUMBER .....  ..........  ......... 304 
CATEGORY  ..........  ......... Administration 
EFFECTIVE .  ..........  .........  DATE: 01/28/01 
UPDATED………………….05/01/2008 
AUTHOR .....  ..........  .........  Vicky Carlsen, CFO 
 
REFERENCE 
Authorized by the Board of Commissioners by Resolution No. 01-02 
 
SCOPE 
Administrative Personnel 
 
PURPOSE 
To establish a uniform policy for handling all District change funds. 
 
POLICY 
Change funds will only be established or dissolved by resolution.   
 
Change fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased by resolution.   
 
Change funds are to be kept in a secure location with limited access. 
 
Change funds are to be maintained at authorized levels at all times. 
 
Change funds are to be used for the sole purpose of making change for business transactions.   
 
Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the safekeeping and 
maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 
 
It is the responsibility of the custodian to ensure that the change fund contains the appropriate 
breakdown of currency and coins. 
 
Change funds are subject to random audits. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer or designee will, at a minimum, count change funds on an annual 
basis. 
 
If it is deemed necessary to change the custodian of the change fund, a count of the change 
fund will take place before the fund is transferred to the new custodian.  It is the responsibility 
of the retiring custodian to ensure that the change fund is at the authorized imprest amount 
before the transfer takes place. 
 
Any discrepancy in the change fund is the sole responsibility of the custodian unless there is 
extenuating circumstances i.e. the station has been broken into and a police report has been 
filed.  What constitutes extenuating circumstances is at the discretion of the Fire Chief and the 

53



 
 

 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 2 of 2 
Policy 304 District Change Funds  Approved by  ______________ 10/20/2022  
                   Fire Chief 

Chief Financial Officer. 
 
If it is deemed that the change fund is no longer necessary the change fund will be returned 
and the fund dissolved by resolution. 
 
The Custodian of the change fund will sign a copy of these procedures acknowledging receipt 
and willingness to comply with these procedures.  The signed copy will be kept on file in the 
Chief Financial Officer’s office. 
 
PROCEDURE 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A 

54



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINEBOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.04 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: January 28, 2001 

REVIEWED: October 12, 2022 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS POLICY 

 

PURPOSE: To establish a uniform policy for handling all District change funds. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

 The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate, within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

POLICY: It is the policy of the District that Change Funds will only be established or dissolved by 

Resolution, and that Change Fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased 

by Resolution. 

 

PROCEDURE: XXX 

I. Change funds will only be established or dissolved by resolution.  

 

II. Change fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased by resolution.  

 

III.I. Change funds are to be kept in a secure location with limited access.  

 

IV.II. Change funds are to be maintained at authorized levels at all times. 

 

V.III. Change funds are to be used for the sole purpose of making change for business 

transactions.  

 

VI.IV. The Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the 

safekeeping and maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 

 

VII.V. It is the responsibility of the custodian to ensure that the change fund contains the 

appropriate breakdown of currency and coins.  

 

VIII.VI. Change funds are subject to random audits.  

 

55



IX.VII. The Chief Financial Officer or designee will, at a minimum, count change funds on an 

annual basis.  

 

X.VIII. If it is deemed necessary to change the custodian of the change fund, a count of the 

change fund will take place before the fund is transferred to the new custodian.  It is the 

responsibility of the retiring custodian to ensure that the change fund is at the 

authorized imprest amount before the transfer takes place.  

 

XI.IX. Any discrepancy in the change fund is the sole responsibility of the custodian unless 

there is extenuating circumstances i.e. the station has been broken into and a police 

report has been filed.  What constitutes extenuating circumstances is at the discretion 

of the Fire Chief and the Chief Financial Officer.  

 

XII.X. If it is deemed that the change fund is no longer necessary, the change fund will be 

returned and the fund dissolved by resolution.  

 

XIII.XI. The Custodian of the change fund will sign a copy of these procedures acknowledging 

receipt and willingness to comply with these procedures.  The signed copy will be kept 

on file in the Chief Financial Officer’s office. 

  

PROCEDURE: XXX 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

56



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.04 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: January 28, 2001 

REVIEWED: October 12, 2022 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS 

 

PURPOSE: To establish a uniform policy for handling all District change funds. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

 The Board of Fire Commissioners and Executive Staff Members have the authority and 

responsibility to ensure all District Members are familiar with, and operate, within the 

parameters of this Board Policy. 

 

POLICY: It is the policy of the District that Change Funds will only be established or dissolved by 

Resolution, and that Change Fund imprest amounts will only be increased or decreased 

by Resolution. 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

I. Change funds are to be kept in a secure location with limited access.  

 

II. Change funds are to be maintained at authorized levels at all times. 

 

III. Change funds are to be used for the sole purpose of making change for business 

transactions.  

 

IV. The Fire Chief or designee will assign a custodian who is to be responsible for the 

safekeeping and maintenance of the change fund necessary to conduct business. 

 

V. It is the responsibility of the custodian to ensure that the change fund contains the 

appropriate breakdown of currency and coins.  

 

VI. Change funds are subject to random audits.  

 

VII. The Chief Financial Officer or designee will, at a minimum, count change funds on an 

annual basis.  

 

57



VIII. If it is deemed necessary to change the custodian of the change fund, a count of the 

change fund will take place before the fund is transferred to the new custodian.  It is the 

responsibility of the retiring custodian to ensure that the change fund is at the 

authorized imprest amount before the transfer takes place.  

 

IX. Any discrepancy in the change fund is the sole responsibility of the custodian unless 

there is extenuating circumstances i.e. the station has been broken into and a police 

report has been filed.  What constitutes extenuating circumstances is at the discretion 

of the Fire Chief and the Chief Financial Officer.  

 

X. If it is deemed that the change fund is no longer necessary, the change fund will be 

returned and the fund dissolved by resolution.  

 

XI. The Custodian of the change fund will sign a copy of these procedures acknowledging 

receipt and willingness to comply with these procedures.  The signed copy will be kept 

on file in the Chief Financial Officer’s office. 

  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

58



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: October 24, 2022  

Item Title: Finance Staff Report 

Attachments: Board Investment Final 

Submitted by: FD Robacker  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. September Checkbook: 

 
A. Revenues on track. 

i. Revenue is expected to be behind until October/November tax payments. 
 

B. Expenditures – Overages to be addressed at year-end. 
i. P&E  
ii. OT 
iii. Shop/Fleet 

 
 

 

59



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
Operating	Funds	Summary	of	Revenue	&	Expenditures
General	Fund	001	&	EMS	101	as	of	 9/30/22 9																					 	
Percent	Budget	Complete	as	of	report	date: 75.0%

2022	REVENUE	&	EXPENDITURES	SUMMARY	(Operating	Funds)

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCE 2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
Year‐To‐Date	
TOTALs A

Operating	Reserve	‐	August	Approval	to	
Appropriate ‐$																							 	 ‐$																							 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																				 	 ‐$																				 	 ‐$																				 	 ‐$																				 	 ‐$																				 	 $0
Carryforward	from	Prior	Month
(Jan	is	Min	Cash	Flow	Reserve) 11,800,000$				 11,800,000$				 9,354,112$	 5,196,878$	 4,396,989$				 24,903,045$	 23,657,328$	 18,472,185$	 14,467,697$	 8,740,577$	 ‐$						 ‐$						 ‐$						 $11,800,000 A
Total	 11,800,000				 11,800,000					 9,354,112		 5,196,878		 4,396,989				 24,903,045		 23,657,328		 18,472,185		 14,467,697		 8,740,577		 ‐			 ‐			 ‐			 11,800,000		 A

2022	Current
Year‐To‐Date	
ACTUALS	as	of

	%	
Budget	

B.	REVENUE	(+) BUDGET JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 9/30/22 Received B
Reg	Levy 28,852,747						 56,188														 	 439,858							 1,343,148			 11,571,091			 2,195,258						 124,809									 85,392											 	 117,146									 354,495							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 16,287,385		 56.5% B
EMS	Levy 11,377,565						 22,488														 	 173,774							 530,128							 4,564,051						 865,987									 49,222											 	 33,795											 	 46,233											 	 139,847							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 6,425,525					 56.5% B
EMS	Levy	Write	Offs (1,300,000)							 (143,026)										 	 (85,344)								 (143,545)					 (81,566)									 	 (104,123)								 (82,088)									 	 (119,184)								 (96,899)									 	 (93,939)								 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 (949,714)							 73.1% B
FBC 25,640,806						 60,911														 	 460,445							 1,403,600			 11,232,666			 754,361									 133,258									 101,492									 111,592									 312,680							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 14,571,005		 56.8% B
Transports 4,200,000								 373,732											 	 361,235							 419,914							 309,003									 469,374									 418,856									 413,232									 360,629									 386,102							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 3,512,077					 83.6% B
Transports	Paid	by	Levy 1,300,000								 143,026											 	 85,344									 143,545							 81,566											 	 104,123									 82,088											 	 119,184									 96,898											 	 93,939									 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 949,713									 73.1% B
Licenses	&	Permits 25,500													 	 1,100																 	 13,730									 6,170											 	 2,075													 	 775																	 	 1,000													 	 1,500													 	 695																 	 300														 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 27,345										 	 107.2% B
Other	Charges	for	Goods	&	Svcs 1,820,060								 160,396											 	 102,928							 161,601							 61,761											 	 89,707											 	 153,616									 63,424											 	 86,000											 	 136,429							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 1,015,862					 55.8% B
Grants	(Intergovernmental) 18,128													 	 529																				 	 4,381											 	 2,628											 	 738,055									 10,621											 	 1,404													 	 1,561,500						 5,440													 	 781														 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 2,325,338					 12827% B
Investment	Interest 36,000													 	 2,246																 	 2,012											 	 3,845											 	 5,240													 	 12,853											 	 35,048											 	 57,770											 	 75,464											 	 70,410									 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 264,888									 735.8% B
Miscellaneous	&	Other	Tax	Revenue 19,600													 	 1,469																 	 1,969											 	 4,469											 	 705																	 	 ‐																		 	 1,111													 	 ‐																		 	 17,694											 	 1,513											 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 28,929										 	 147.6% B
Other	Sources ‐																				 	 ‐																					 	 ‐															 	 ‐															 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																	 	 ‐															 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 ‐																		 	 0.0% B

B
Total	Revenues 71,990,406				 679,058										 	 1,560,331		 3,875,503		 28,484,647		 4,398,936				 918,324								 2,318,105				 820,892								 1,402,557		 ‐			 ‐			 ‐			 44,458,353		 61.8% B

2022	Current
Year‐To‐Date	
ACTUALS	as	of

	%	
Budget	

C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) BUDGET JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 9/30/22 Spent C
Commissioners 57,086													 	 10,614														 	 3,316											 	 3,204											 	 3,391													 	 4,528													 	 1,988													 	 5,218													 	 3,736													 	 6,541											 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 42,536										 	 74.5% C
Commissioners'	Contingency 166,500											 	 ‐																					 	 ‐															 	 ‐															 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																	 	 ‐															 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 ‐																		 	 33.4% C
Admin	&	Internal	Services 10,836,781						 675,195											 	 807,769							 608,253							 817,677									 682,417									 878,580									 1,122,296						 841,645									 807,977							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 7,241,809					 66.8% C
Operations	(Suppression,	EMS) 51,600,977						 4,960,759									 4,269,023			 3,450,438			 4,548,411						 3,974,204						 4,338,028						 4,350,165						 4,720,235						 4,041,597			 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 38,652,860		 74.9% C
Overtime	‐	ALL	DIVISIONS 5,685,580								 662,344											 	 392,128							 336,754							 507,169									 564,310									 594,770									 531,674									 645,838									 775,313							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 5,010,299					 88.1% C
Prevention	&	Education 1,594,374								 141,618											 	 116,082							 94,865									 125,921									 259,670									 132,781									 140,577									 150,007									 142,824							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 1,304,345					 81.8% C
Fleet	Maintenance 1,912,724								 187,845											 	 129,247							 181,878							 170,482									 159,524									 157,321									 172,663									 186,551									 143,412							 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 1,488,923					 77.8% C
Transfers	to	ERF	&	Facilities	&	ENC 3,649,813								 ‐																					 	 ‐															 	 ‐															 	 1,805,540						 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																	 	 ‐															 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 1,805,540					 49.5% C
Other	Uses ‐																				 	 ‐																					 	 ‐															 	 ‐															 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																	 	 ‐															 	 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 ‐																		 	 0.0% C

C
Total	Expenditures 75,503,835				 6,638,375								 5,717,565		 4,675,392		 7,978,591				 5,644,653				 6,103,468				 6,322,593				 6,548,012				 5,917,664		 ‐			 ‐			 ‐			 55,546,312		 73.6% C

D.	TOTAL	CHANGE	BY	MONTH
[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (3,513,429)								 (5,959,317)									 (4,157,234)		 (799,889)						 20,506,057				 (1,245,717)					 (5,185,144)					 (4,004,488)					 (5,727,120)					 (4,515,107)		 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 (11,087,959)			 D

E.	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	9/30/22 8,286,571$							 5,840,683$								 5,196,878$		 4,396,989$		 24,903,045$		 23,657,328$		 18,472,185$		 14,467,697$		 8,740,577$				 4,225,470$		 ‐$		 ‐$		 ‐$		 712,041											 E

F.	Planned	Use	of	Savings 3,513,429										 3,513,429										 3,513,429								 F

G.	Carryforward	(E	+	F) 11,800,000							 9,354,112										 5,196,878				 4,396,989				 24,903,045				 23,657,328				 18,472,185				 14,467,697				 8,740,577							 4,225,470				 ‐				 ‐				 ‐				 4,225,470								 G

Created by: Tanya Robacker 60



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
General	Fund,	EMS,	and	Reserve	Funds	as	of
9/30/2022

Col	A Col	B Col	C Col	D Col	E Col	F

SUMMARY	OF	CARRYFORWARD	‐	2022	REVENUE	&	EXPENDITURES	‐	GENERAL	AND	EMS	FUNDS

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCES

Checkbook
Gen	Fund	&	EMS
(001	&	101)

Gen	Fund	&	
EMS	

Reserves
Reserve	Fund

(011)
ERF
(015)

Facilities
(050)

TOTAL	Gen	
Fund,	EMS	&	
Reserves

1. Beginning	Balance	1/1/2022 ‐$																									 ‐$																	 ‐$																	 4,609$														 205,518$							 210,127$									
2. Minimum	Cash	Flow	(Working	Capital	Reserve) 11,800,000											 11,800,000					
3. 5%	Operating	Reserve	(Revenue	Stabilization) 3,609,960						 3,609,960							
4. Unreserved	Carryforward 7,019,084						 7,019,084							
5. Total	Beginning	Balances 11,800,000									 7,019,084					 3,609,960					 4,609															 205,518								 22,639,171					

6. B.	REVENUE	(+) 44,458,353									 ‐																			 24,155											 1,007,975						 805,540								 46,296,023					

7. C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) 55,546,312									 ‐																			 ‐																			 639,109$							 811,325$					 56,996,746					

8.
D.	NET	CHANGE		[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (11,087,959)								 ‐																			 24,155											 368,866										 (5,785)											 (10,700,723)			

9.

E.	Preliminary	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	9/30/2022	
(Unaudited	and	subject	to	change) 712,041$													 7,019,084$		 3,634,115$		 373,475$							 199,733$					 11,938,448$		

Fund	Key:
10. 		Minimum	Cash	Flow	‐	Working	capital	reserve	that	gets	us	from	October	tax	payment	through	the	April	tax	payment.
11. 		5%	Operating	Reserve	‐	Revenue	stabilization/emergency	reserve	to	fund	expenditures	during	disasters,	moved	to	011	August	2020.
12. 		Unreserved	Carryforward	‐	Money	in	savings	in	the	fund,	available	for	use	in	the	same	manner	as	the	fund	it	resides	in.
13. 		Operating	Funds	(001	Gen	Fund	and	101	EMS	Fund)	‐	Available	to	cover	all	Salaries,	Benefits,	Supplies,	Services,	Capital	and	Debt.
14. 		Reserve	Fund	(011)	‐	Revenue	stabilization/emergency	reserve	to	fund	expenditures	during	disasters,	5	%	+	interest.
15. 		ERF	/	Reserve	(015)	‐	Reserved	by	Board	Resolution	to	fund	replacement	costs	for	equipment	and	apparatus.
16. 		Facilities	(050)	‐	Reserved	by	Board	Resolution	to	fund	building	maintenance	and	repairs.

Created by: Tanya Robacker 1  of  261



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
ALL	Funds	as	of
9/30/2022

Col	A Col	B Col	C Col	D Col	E

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCE

TOTAL	Gen	
Fund,	EMS	&	
Reserves

GEMT
(102)

Debt
(201)

Capital	Projects
(301)

Year‐To‐Date	
TOTALS

Beginning	Balance	1/1/2022	(Carryforward) 22,639,171$								 9,170,221$										 491,174$														 16,390,186$								 48,690,752$		
1. Total	Beginning	Balances 22,639,171								 9,170,221											 491,174														 16,390,186								 48,690,752				

2. B.	REVENUE	(+) 46,296,023								 4,995,614											 1,382,199											 63,172																	 52,737,008				

3. C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) 56,996,746								 ‐																									 528,181														 1,131,571											 58,656,498				

4.
D.	NET	CHANGE	[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (10,700,723)						 4,995,614											 854,018														 (1,068,399)									 (5,919,490)					

5.

E.	Preliminary	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	9/30/2022	
(Unaudited	and	subject	to	change) 11,938,448$						 14,165,835$						 1,345,192$								 15,321,787$						 42,771,262$		

‐																						 	
Fund	Key:

6. 		GEMT	Fund	(102)	‐	Reserved	revenue	from	medicaid	transports,	restricted	to	use	for	EMS	operating,	capital,	and	facility	costs
7. 		Debt	Fund	(201)	‐	Reserved	revenue	source	from	the	Excess	Levy,	restricted	to	use	for	GO	Bond	Debt	repayment	only
8. 		Capital	Project	Fund	(301)	‐	Reserved	revenue	from	the	GO	Bonds,	restricted	to	use	for	capital	facilities,	furnishings,	and	potentially	apparatus.	

Created by: Tanya Robacker 2  of  262



FUND	301	CAPITAL	PROJECTS
LIFE‐TO‐DATE	SPENDING
updated	thru 9/30/22

2013 to 
2020 2021 2022

Grand	
Total

Div DivTitAccount2 Desc 2021 2022
200 Administration

53501 Small Tools/Equipment 1,615 1,615
Sal & Benefits 658,060 658,060
54151 Legal Fees 54,327 54,327
54911 Contractual Services 252,693 252,693

200 Total 966,696 966,696

204 Logistics

56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,100 4,100
204 Total 4,100 4,100

205 Central Stores

53146 Building Repair Parts (0) (0)
54191 Other Professional Services 8,971 8,971
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 10,995 22,105 33,099

205 Total 19,966 22,105 42,070

600 Station 60

53141 Operating Supplies 878 878
53146 Building Repair Parts 280 280
53501 Small Tools/Equipment 39,563 39,563
54111 Advertising 746 746
54191 Other Professional Services 44,365 44,365
54502 Other Operating Rental 6,874 6,874
54611 Insurance 18,500 18,500
54911 Contractual Services 148,534 148,534
56101 Land Acquisition 3,388 3,388
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 10,177,326 10,177,326
56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 92,080 92,080
56241 Capital‐Contstruction Contract (3,765) (3,765)
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 1,038,876 1,038,876
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 116,343 116,343
56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 35,234 35,234
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 133,750 133,750
56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 238,490 238,490

600 Total 12,091,462 12,091,462

10/19/2022
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 1  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

63



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022

Grand	
Total

601 Station 61

54151 Legal Fees 2,499 2,499
54911 Contractual Services 58,179 58,179
56101 Land Acquisition 816,837 816,837
56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 18,001 18,001
56241 Capital‐Contstruction Contract 1,875 1,875
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 187,906 34,033 72,326 294,264
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 9,861 9,861
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 26,670 26,670

601 Total 1,121,827 34,033 72,326 1,228,186

602 Station 62

54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 4,891 4,891
54911 Contractual Services 1,200 1,200
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 9,762 9,762

602 Total 15,853 15,853

603 Station 63

53146 Building Repair Parts 713 713
53501 Small Tools/Equipment 33,604 33,604
54111 Advertising 751 751
54151 Legal Fees 777 777
54191 Other Professional Services 81,625 81,625
54911 Contractual Services 40,148 40,148
56101 Land Acquisition 466,669 466,669
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 4,007,131 4,007,131
56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 77,975 77,975
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 459,515 459,515
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 50,720 50,720
56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 28,870 28,870
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 80,577 80,577
56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 30,930 30,930

603 Total 5,360,004 5,360,004

604 Station 64

54191 Other Professional Services 1,208 1,208
54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 65,422 65,422
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 6,443 6,443

604 Total 73,072 73,072

605 Station 65

53502 Communication Equipment 5,747 5,747
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,558 11,558

605 Total 18,109 18,109

10/19/2022
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 2  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

64



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022

Grand	
Total

606 Station 66

53146 Building Repair Parts 0 0
53501 Small Tools/Equipment 0 0
54151 Legal Fees 0 0
54191 Other Professional Services 0 0
54911 Contractual Services 0 0
56101 Land Acquisition (0) 30,500 30,500
56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 0 1,400 1,400
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs (0) 34,517 34,517
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs (0) (0)
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 0 0

606 Total (0) 66,417 66,417

607 Station 67

54911 Contractual Services 110,000 110,000
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 17,272 17,272
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 1,554 1,554
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,763 11,763

607 Total 141,392 141,392

617 Training Center (67)

56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 17,970 17,970
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 0 0

617 Total 17,970 17,970

608 Station 68

56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 13,041 13,041

608 Total 13,845 13,845

609 Station 69

54191 Other Professional Services 821 821
54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 108,777 108,777
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,675 4,675
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,114 11,114

609 Total 125,386 125,386

650 Maint. Shop

56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 5,655 5,655
650 Total 5,655 5,655

10/19/2022
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 3  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

65



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022

Grand	
Total

701 Station 71

53501 Small Tools/Equipment 993 993
54191 Other Professional Services 2,535 2,535
54502 Other Operating Rental 500 500
54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 31,157 31,157
54912 Fees/Permits 580 580
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 19,815 19,815
56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 1,190 1,190
56241 Capital‐Contstruction Contract 176,226 176,226
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 78,809 78,809
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 5,698 5,698
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 14,679 14,679

701 Total 332,182 332,182

702 Station 72

53146 Building Repair Parts 376 376
53501 Small Tools/Equipment 5,458 5,458
54111 Advertising 483 483
54151 Legal Fees 10,234 10,234
54191 Other Professional Services 36,361 36,361
54611 Insurance 8,000 8,000
54911 Contractual Services 446,916 446,916
56101 Land Acquisition 3,597,518 3,597,518
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 145,752 145,752
56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 315,515 (45,000) 270,515
56241 Capital‐Contstruction Contract 12,867,594 12,867,594
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 1,320,968 1,320,968
56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 257,157 257,157
56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 30,189 30,189
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 123,781 123,781
56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 1,366 1,366
54941 Printing & Binding 197 197
54731 Electricity 552 552

702 Total 19,168,417 (45,000) 19,123,417

703 Station 73

53501 Small Tools/Equipment 6,349 6,349
54191 Other Professional Services 15,636 15,636
54911 Contractual Services 840 840
54912 Fees/Permits 600 600
56101 Land Acquisition 905,798 905,798
56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 80,579 80,579
56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,493 72,818 56,296 133,606
56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 5,831 5,831

703 Total 107,979 79,167 962,093 1,149,239

Grand Total 39,579,817 68,200 1,127,041 40,775,057

10/19/2022
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 4  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

66



2022 Board Discretionary Fund Activity

Beginning Balance: 250,000.00      

Request for Funds: Approved: Amount: Rejected
Interra Advanced Analytic software for Field Operations 2/14/2022 75,000.00      
GEMT Consulting - Moss Adams Professional Services 4/25/2022 8,500.00        

Total Requests to date: (83,500.00)     

Remaining Funds Available as of: 9/30/2022 166,500.00    

09-2022 Financial Status Report

67



MONTH COLLECTIONS
OUTSTANDING

 
 

REG LEVY FBC EMS LEVY EXCESS LEVY TOTAL-MONTH
Total Collected 

YTD
*TAXES LEVIED / 
OUTSTANDING

68,281,003.00         2022 Budget
January $56,188.08 $60,911.21 $22,488.01 $5,142.84 $144,730.14 $144,730.14 $68,136,272.86
February $439,857.74 $460,444.77 $173,773.88 $36,480.46 $1,110,556.85 $1,255,286.99 $67,025,716.01
March $1,343,148.39 $1,403,600.12 $530,128.41 $112,457.46 $3,389,334.38 $4,644,621.37 $63,636,381.63
April $11,571,090.59 $11,232,666.11 $4,564,050.77 $976,886.81 $28,344,694.28 $32,989,315.65 $35,291,687.35
May $2,195,258.09 $754,360.80 $865,986.71 $185,643.50 $4,001,249.10 $36,990,564.75 $31,290,438.25
June $124,809.26 $133,257.51 $49,222.31 $10,730.27 $318,019.35 $37,308,584.10 $30,972,418.90
July $85,392.28 $101,492.93 $33,794.62 $7,074.88 $227,754.71 $37,536,338.81 $30,744,664.19
August $117,145.55 $111,591.82 $46,233.12 $9,279.61 $284,250.10 $37,820,588.91 $30,460,414.09
September $354,495.46 $312,679.77 $139,847.53 $29,507.40 $836,530.16 $38,657,119.07 $29,623,883.93 Amount to collect
October
November 
December

Total Taxes YTD $16,287,385.44 $14,571,005.04 $6,425,525.36 $1,373,203.23 $38,657,119.07

*includes $0.83 (Regular), $0.33 (EMS) and Benefit Assessment

TAX & FBC COLLECTIONS MONTHLY

09-2022 Financial Status Report

68



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE  TRANSPORT COLLECTIONS

MONTH
TRANSPORT 

COLLECTIONS
GEMT 

COLLECTIONS
TOTAL
MONTH

TOTAL 
COLLECTED YTD

TRANSPORT 
COLLECTIONS 

REMAINING

4,200,000.00         2022 Budget
January $373,731.81 $704,497.42 $1,078,229.23 $1,078,229.23 $3,826,268.19
February $361,235.33 $564,918.91 $926,154.24 $2,004,383.47 $3,465,032.86
March $419,913.56 $530,604.94 $950,518.50 $2,954,901.97 $3,045,119.30
April $309,003.37 ($216,788.60) $92,214.77 $3,047,116.74 $2,736,115.93
May $469,373.74 $877,139.88 $1,346,513.62 $4,393,630.36 $2,266,742.19
June $418,856.69 $494,220.39 $913,077.08 $5,306,707.44 $1,847,885.50
July $413,232.31 $859,427.99 $1,272,660.30 $6,579,367.74 $1,434,653.19
August  $360,594.29 $459,138.25 $819,732.54 $7,399,100.28 $1,074,058.90
September  $386,102.24 $722,454.64 $1,108,556.88 $8,507,657.16 $687,956.66 Amount to collect
October
November 
December

Total YTD $3,512,043.34 $4,995,613.82 $8,507,657.16

09-2022 Financial Status Report

69



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: October 24, 2022 

Item Title:  Prevention & Education 

Attachments:  None 

Submitted by: AC Berdan 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. All Bethel Community Days 

 

A. We collaborated with Graham Fire & Rescue to pull off a great event at Bethel 

High School called ABC Days (All Bethel Community Days).  The event is held 

annually, and alternates between Graham-Kapowsin High School, and BHS.  Both 

CPFR and GFR had P&E staff, firefighters, and a fire engine (each) on site making 

for a substantial presence.  It was a great opportunity not only for the community 

engagement, but for the chance to work closely with one of our neighboring 

jurisdictions. 

 

2. Fire Prevention Institute 

 

A. AC Berdan, DFM Wohrle, DFM Courtney, and Public Educator Thompson all 

attended the week-long Fire Prevention Institute in Chelan.  The mix of educational 

classes included Fire Investigation, Community Risk Reduction, and Fire Prevention 

topics.  It also included a keynote speaker address from Dave Sanderson, the last 

passenger to leave the plane crash dubbed The Miracle on the Hudson.  Fire 

Marshals and Educators from across the state were in attendance, including GFR 

and the PCFM Office. 

 

3. Fire Prevention Week 

 

A. Fire Prevention Week ran from October 9th – 15th.  Of note was a partnership 

connection we were able to make with Domino’s.  For two afternoons, we were 

invited to accompany pizza deliveries to private residences (with the permission of 

the customer) and check their smoke alarms.  If the smoke alarms worked, Domino’s  

70



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

provided them with a coupon for a free pizza.  If the batteries were dead, we 

replaced them.  If no smoke alarms were present, we performed an installation.  

Ultimately, every home that we visited had working smoke alarms.  It was a great 

opportunity to remind the community at large of the importance of checking their 

detectors while providing some lucky recipients with a generous reward.  The 

feedback was overwhelmingly positive. 

 

4. Safe Sitter Classes 

 

A. Two more Safe Sitter classes were delivered, and CPR is officially back on the 

schedule with the first classes scheduled for early November. 

71



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: October 24, 2022 

Item Title:  Health & Safety Division Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by AC McKenzie 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Solo Washers 

 
A. Full implementation is complete, and all breathing apparatuses have been 

decontaminated to baseline. 
 

2. Binder Lift Assist Devices 
 
A. Full implementation is complete. Feedback has been positive. 

 
3. OSHA Injuries 

 
A. 1 – Sprain 
B. 6 – Documented hearing loss 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

 
 
 
 

72



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: October 24, 2022 

Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:  OFVR Letter 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow   
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
REGIONAL EFFORTS: 
 
Progress with the Training Consortium continues at a good pace. Chief Officers, along 
with Engine, Ladder and Medic units from all five agencies have already started training 
each Wednesday here at Station 60.  
 
Central Pierce and Graham continue to work on the joint opportunity that exists with a 
second CARES position that can be shared by both agencies. 
 
The first meeting with Orting Valley Fire & Rescue was held on the 18th. This meeting 
was just about early discovery and a possible process moving forward. The response 
letter that was sent back to Chief Gibson and his Board is attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

73



74



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

 

 

 

 
 
 

October 7th, 2022 

 

To Whom it may concern, 

I would like to recognize Malac Gilkey for his consistent excellence as a team mate at Station 

61.  

Every shift, Malac makes time to get to work early so he can cook breakfast for the crew, 

ensuring the crew will start the day off with a good meal. He prepares a workout for the crew 

each and every day that focuses on functionality as well as strength and is savvy enough to 

adjust it for people with injuries so they can still participate. 

Malac will lead a tailboard drill almost every shift, focusing on moderate to advanced forcible 

entry, laddering or rope techniques. Because of his knowledge of our first-due area, he will also 

make suggestions on buildings that we can ladder or pre-fire walk through to show unique 

hazards not obvious from the street.  

He has never been asked to do this. He does it every shift on his own accord. 

On emergency scenes he has excellent bedside manor and provides great patient care. On the 

fire ground, he is an intelligent, hard-working and aggressive firefighter. 

His efforts around the station and on emergency scenes are definitely appreciated and he is 

worthy of praise for a job well done. 

Sincerely, 

 

Captain Matt Santos 

Station 61 C Shift  

    

 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave. E., Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770 Fax 

www.centralpiercefire.org 

 

75

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/

	1 - 2022-10-24 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2022-10-10 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2022_10_24 Warrant Approval
	6A - BOD 2.17 AIS Second
	6A2 - 2.17 Anti-Harrassment Procedures- MORROW EDITS CLEAN
	10A - Res AIS Robacker
	10Ai - Res 22-08_ Regular Levy
	10Aii - Res 22-09_EMS Levy
	10Aiii Res 22-10_FBC
	10Aiv Res 22-11 Budget Adoption
	10B - BOD 3.04 AIS
	10B - Policy 304 District Change Funds OLD
	10B1 - 3.04 DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS DRAFT- Morrow Edits
	10B2 - 3.04 DISTRICT CHANGE FUNDS DRAFT- Morrow Edits CLEAN
	12A - Finance Div Report
	12A1 - 2022-09 Board Investment FINAL
	2022-09_01-BvA Checkbook
	2022-09_02-Fund Bal Monthly
	2022-09_03-Bond LTD
	2022-09_05-Board Investment
	09-2022 CONTINGENCY Financial Status Report
	09-2022 TAXES Financial Status Report
	09-2022 TRANSPORT Financial Status Report


	12B - P&E Div Report
	12C - H&S Div Report
	12D - Fire Chief Div Report
	12D1 - Letter attach
	13A - Corres - Gilkey



